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Board of Trustees 
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Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 
We have reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report of the Columbus Metropolitan Library, 
Franklin County, prepared by Kennedy Cottrell Richards LLC, for the audit period January 1, 
2013 through December 31, 2013.  Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in 
lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code.  The Auditor of State did not audit 
the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not 
express an opinion on them.   
 
Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by 
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor 
of State, regulations and grant requirements.  The Columbus Metropolitan Library is responsible 
for compliance with these laws and regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dave Yost 
Auditor of State 
 
June 13, 2014  
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May 22, 2014 
 
To the Citizens of the City of Columbus and Franklin County and 
The Board of Trustees and Chief Executive Officer 
of Columbus Metropolitan Library 
 
The Ohio Revised Code requires that every general purpose local government publish, within six 
months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. This report 
is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. 
 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. 
 
CML’s financial statements have been audited under contract with the Auditor of State of Ohio by 
Kennedy Cottrell Richards, a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The independent 
auditor concluded that CML’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, 
are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction. 
 
Profile of the Government 
 
Columbus City Council established a free, tax-supported library in 1872, which opened as the 
“Public Library and Reading Room of Columbus” inside a newly built City Hall in 1873. 
 
The State of Ohio established CML as a county district library in 1976 with a legal service district 
of Franklin County, except for the legal service areas of the other six library systems within the 
county (Bexley, Upper Arlington, Grandview, Southwest, Worthington, and Westerville). 
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Today CML consists of Main Library on South Grant Avenue, twenty branches throughout the 
county, and a fleet of vehicles serving citizens unable to access branches. CML also contributes 
to the operation of a branch owned by Worthington Libraries, a separate legal entity, which serves 
citizens of both library districts. 
 
CML’s collection contains over 1.9 million items including books, audio books, music CDs, DVDs, 
digital downloads, magazines, newspapers, maps and sheet music. CML’s Main Library contains 
a large microfilm collection of past issues of periodicals which serve local historians and 
genealogists. In addition to our materials, each of CML’s locations has computers and wi-fi access 
available for public use. CML’s website also offers access to a wealth of electronic databases 
through http://www.columbuslibrary.org/research; this site provides access to directories, 
indexes, abstracts and full-text information on careers, education, genealogy, consumer 
information, obituaries, literature and researching businesses. 
 
CML receives financial support from two component units, excluded from the entity-wide financial 
statements due to immateriality. The Friends of CML raise funds through sales of books, 
miscellaneous CML branded merchandise, and the operation of The Library Store located inside 
Main Library. The Friends of CML help fund critical CML programs like Summer Reading Club, 
Homework Help Centers and CML’s levy campaigns. More information about the Friends of CML 
can be found at http://friendsofcml.com/. The Columbus Metropolitan Library Foundation (CMLF) 
collects donations to support CML’s programs. CMLF annually hosts the fundraising event, 
Celebration of Learning to raise funds that support library programming. In 2013, Celebration of 
Learning raised over $ 500,000. More information about CMLF can be found at 
http://foundation.columbuslibrary.org/. 
 
CML is under the control and management of a seven member Board of Trustees; three Board 
members are appointed by the Judges of the Court of Common Pleas and four are appointed by 
the Franklin County Commissioners.  CML is a separate legal entity, financially and operationally 
independent from the City of Columbus and Franklin County. The Board of Trustees has sole 
authority to request a rate and purpose for a tax levy. 
 
The Board reviews and approves an annual budget prior to the beginning of each year for each 
fund. The Board appropriates expenditures in the General Fund for Salaries and Benefits and All 
Other Expenditures (Supplies, Library Materials, Services, etc.) All other funds are appropriated 
at the total expenditures level. Any necessary re-appropriations at these levels, require Board 
approval. 
 
Management is responsible for making further breakdowns in the budget, and tracking 
expenditures throughout the year.  
 
CML prepares its financial statements in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component 
Units – and amendment to GASB Statement No. 14. Information regarding the reporting 
standards and bases of accounting used in preparation of the financial statements can be found 
in Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 
 
Local Economy 
 
CML is located entirely within Franklin County, Ohio. Columbus, the largest city in the state, and 
Franklin County have had steady growth as evidenced by the following chart: 
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 Population Growth City of Columbus  Franklin County, Ohio  
 1980  566,800 869,132 
 1990  632,910 961,437 
 2000 711,470 1,068,978 
 2010 787,073 1,195,537 
 2020* Not Available 1,238,250 
 2030* Not Available 1,326,180 

* - projected 
Source:  Sales & Marketing Management; U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census; Ohio Department of Development, 
Office of Strategic Research ; http://www.census.gov/ 

 
Unemployment data indicates the U.S. economy and that of Franklin County is beginning to show 
signs of improvement. As of March, 2014, the most recent data available, the United States 
unemployment rate has decreased to 6.7% and the State of Ohio unemployment rate has 
decreased to 6.1%. Meanwhile, the Franklin County unemployment rate for March 2014 (the most 
recent county data available) is below both the state and national rates remaining at 6.1% as it 
supported by the strong and diverse economy of the Columbus metropolitan area. 
Source:  Ohio Department of Job and Family Services (http://ohiolmi.com/) 

CML’s operational revenue is based on two major sources of funding, the Public Library Fund 
(PLF) and a local property tax levy. The PLF is an amount which the State of Ohio appropriates 
in their biennium budget to support libraries throughout Ohio. Each county receives an allocation 
of 1.97% of Ohio’s general revenues. The second major source of CML’s operational revenue is 
a 2.8 mill continuing property tax levy which was overwhelmingly supported by Franklin County 
voters in the fall of 2010. 

In late 2012, CML issued $ 92 million dollars in bonds to support CML’s building program. CML 
is building new branches and renovating existing branches to better serve community needs. 
Throughout 2013, construction has been going on at a new branch to serve Columbus’ Driving 
Park community. It is set to open summer 2014. More information about CML’s building program 
can be found at http://www.columbuslibrary.org/buildings.  

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the CML for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. This was 
the twenty-seventh consecutive year that CML has achieved this prestigious award. In order to 
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of 
Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current comprehensive annual 
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program requirements and we 
are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

This report is issued by Paula L. Miller, CFO/Fiscal Officer. Thanks and recognition go to the 
entire staff of CML’s Financial Services Department. I also wish to express my appreciation to 
CML’s executives and the members of the Board for their continued interest and support in 
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planning and conducting the financial operations of CML in a responsible and progressive 
manner. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~ 
Paula L. Miller 
Chief Financial Officer/Fiscal Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Columbus Metropolitan Library 
Franklin County 
96 South Grant Avenue 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
To the Board of Trustees: 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Columbus Metropolitan Library, Franklin County, Ohio 
(the Library), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, 
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards 
in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require 
us to plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  
 
An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures 
selected depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant 
to the Library's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the extent needed to opine on the 
effectiveness of the Library's internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of their 
significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.   
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Columbus Metropolitan Library, Franklin County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2013, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Columbus Metropolitan Library 
Independent Auditor’s Report 
Page 2 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to include 
Management’s discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, consisting of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, to the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not opine or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to opine or provide any other assurance.  
 
Supplementary and Other Information    
 
Our audit was conducted to opine on the Library’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.  The 
introductory section, the financial section’s combining statements, individual fund statements and 
schedules and the statistical section information present additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements.   
 
The financial section’s combining statements and individual fund statements and schedules are 
management’s responsibility, and derive from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements.   We subjected these statements and schedules to 
the auditing procedures we applied to the basic financial statements.  We also applied certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling statements and schedules directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, these statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
We did not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other 
assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 22, 2014, 
on our consideration of the Library’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  That report 
describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial reporting and compliance, and the results 
of that testing, and does not opine on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Library’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 
Kennedy Cottrell Richards LLC 
May 22, 2014 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

As management of the Columbus Metropolitan Library (CML), we offer readers of CML’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of CML for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, the financial statements, and 
the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
Key financial highlights for the fiscal year 2013 are as follows: 
 

 The assets of CML exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year by $141,793,676. Of this amount, $70,481,717 was unrestricted and may 
be used to meet CML’s ongoing obligations. 
 

 CML’s net position increased by $19,782,546 or 16.2%. 
 

 Of the $81,476,176 in total revenues, general revenues accounted for $77,547,402 or 95.2%. 
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, grants and contributions 
accounted for $3,928,774 or 4.8%. 
 

 CML had $61,693,630 in expenses related to governmental activities; 6 .4% of these 
expenditures were offset with program specific revenues. The remaining 93.6% was provided by 
general revenues of CML, including Property Taxes, State of Ohio shared revenues and 
investment earnings. 
 

 CML has three major funds: the general fund, the capital projects fund, and the debt service 
fund. Under the modified basis of accounting, the general fund had $69,518,041 in revenues 
and other financing sources and $56,539,203 in expenditures, resulting in an increase in 
fund balance of $13,078,838; of this $100,000 was transferred to the restricted donation fund. 

 
 At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance in the general fund was 

$38,160,939. This represents 90.8% of total fund balance in the general fund and 67.6% 
percent of 2013 general fund expenditures. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to CML’s basic financial statements. 
CML’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial 
statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
CML’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of CML’s assets, liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of CML is improving or 
deteriorating. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how CML’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes to net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses 
reported in the statement for some items will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected 
taxes and earned but unused leave). 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. CML uses fund accounting to assure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The funds of CML are divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds 
Governmental funds focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable financial resources, as 
well as on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating CML’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, a reader may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
CML maintains six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the capital projects fund, and the debt service fund, all of 
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other three governmental funds are combined 
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
CML’s only proprietary fund is the self-insurance fund. The self-insurance fund is an internal service fund. 
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally 
among the CML’s various functions. The service provided by this fund benefits the governmental funds 
and has been included within governmental activities in the government- wide financial statements. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
CML’s only fiduciary fund is the digital downloads fund. The digital downloads fund is an agency fund. 
An agency fund is an accounting device used to report assets held in a custodial manner by one 
government on behalf of other member governments. CML does not derive any benefits from the 
assets held in the agency fund, and reports only the assets and the corresponding liabilities 
associated with the fund. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
The Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of CML as a whole. Table 1 provides a summary 
of CML’s net position for 2013 compared to 2012. 
 

Restated
2013 2012

Assets
Current and Other Assets 216,995,833$  213,529,487$  
Capital Assets, Net 71,647,172      65,736,785      
Total Assets 288,643,005    279,266,272    

Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities 98,972,471      101,789,657    
Other Liabilites 4,656,949        3,634,003        
Total Liabilities 103,629,420    105,423,660    

Deferred Inflows of Resources 43,219,909      51,831,482      

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 68,969,845      65,736,785      
Restricted 2,342,114        1,737,348        
Unrestricted 70,481,717      54,536,997      
Total Net Position 141,793,676$ 122,011,130$ 

Governmental Activities

Net Position
Table 1

 
 
 
Capital Assets increased significantly in comparison with the prior year.  This increase is the result of 
CML’s building program commencing in 2012.   
 
Long-Term Liabilities decreased significantly in comparison with the prior year.  This decrease primarily 
represents a principle payment made in 2013. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased significantly in comparison with the prior year.  The majority of 
this decrease is the result of an increase in property taxes available for advance at year-end, which 
increased property tax revenue in the current period.   
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

Table 2 shows a comparison of the changes in net position for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 
compared to December 31, 2012. 
 

Restated
2013 2012

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services 2,605,105$        2,797,485$        
Operating Grants and Contributions 323,669             410,906             
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,000,000          -                     

General Revenues
Property Taxes 47,651,678        44,081,501        
Intergovernmental 29,027,326        26,188,636        
Investment Earnings 473,331             255,983             
Miscellaneous 395,067             703,343             

Total Revenues 81,476,176        74,437,854        

Program Expenses
Public Service 34,350,249        34,461,220        
Administrative and Support 24,431,281        24,148,809        
Interest Expense 2,912,100          264,199             

Total Expenses 61,693,630        58,874,228        

Increase (decrease) in Net Position 19,782,546        15,563,626        

Net Position Beginning Balance, Restated 122,011,130      106,447,504      
Total Net Position 141,793,676$   122,011,130$    

Governmental Activities

Changes in Net Position
Table 2

 
As noted, 2012 amounts have been restated.  See Note 11 to the basic financial statements for more 
information regarding this restatement.  In addition, 2012 program expenses have been reclassified to 
correlate with the 2013 classifications. 
 
Capital Grants and Contributions and Property Taxes both increased significantly in comparison with the 
prior year.  The Capital Grants and Contributions increase is the result of a capital contribution from the 
Columbus Metropolitan Library Foundation.  The Property Taxes increase is primarily the result of an 
increase in property taxes available for advance at year-end.   
 
A major source of funding for CML is money received from the State of Ohio's Public Library Fund (PLF). 
The source of money for this fund comes from a percentage of the state taxes collected in Ohio 
including, state income tax and sales tax. 
 
Based on this formula, a percentage of this fund is distributed to each county for use by the public 
library districts within that county. Within Franklin County there are seven (7) public library districts that 
share this revenue. Each library's share of the fund is established by the Budget Commission. The 
Budget Commission uses a formula to determine each library's share of the money; however, the use of a 
formula is not mandatory under Ohio law. This formula was negotiated and agreed to by each of the 
library districts within the county.  Based on the formula, CML received 60.8% in 2013. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

Another major source of revenue for CML in 2013 is the revenue generated by the 2.8 mill property tax 
levy.  In November 2010, a 2.2 mill levy was replaced with an additional 0.6 mill levy by the voters in 
CML's taxing district. 
 
Interest Expense increased significantly in comparison with the prior year.  2013 was the first full year of 
debt service on the general obligation bonds issued at the end of 2012, resulting in this increase.   

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services, 
grants, and contributions offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net 
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of those services supported by tax revenue and state 
shared revenues. 
 

Restated Restated
Total Cost Total Cost Net Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services

2013 2012 2013 2012
Program Expenses

Public Service 34,350,249$  34,461,220$  32,836,670$  32,622,492$  
Administrative and Support 24,431,281    24,148,809    22,016,086    22,779,146    
Interest Expense 2,912,100      264,199         2,912,100      264,199         

Total Expenses 61,693,630$  58,874,228$ 57,764,856$ 55,665,837$  

Governmental Activities
Table 3

 
As noted, 2012 amounts have been restated.  See Note 11 to the basic financial statements for more 
information regarding this restatement.  In addition, 2012 program expenses have been reclassified to 
correlate with the 2013 classifications. 
 
The above schedule clearly shows the dependence upon tax revenues and state subsidies for 
governmental activities. Program revenues, such as charges for services, grants and contributions, cover 
only 6.4% of the expenses related to the activities performed by CML. The remaining 93.6% of 
expenses is provided through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and investment earnings. 
 

1,513,579 2,415,195 
-

34,350,249 

24,431,281 

2,912,100 

 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

Public Service Administrative and Support Interest Expense

Activities for Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Program Revenues Expenses
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The purpose of CML’s governmental funds is to account for information on near-term inflows, outflows 
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing CML’s financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of CML’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
General Fund 
At year-end, the fund balance in CML’s general fund was $42,008,979, an increase of $12,978,838 in 
comparison with the prior year.  For the most part, this increase represents the amount in which property 
tax and intergovernmental revenues exceeded program expenditures.  Of CML’s ending general fund 
fund balance, $38,160,939 represents the unassigned portion, which is available for spending at CML’s 
discretion.  This unassigned fund balance represents 67.6 percent of 2013 general fund expenditures. 
 
Capital Projects Fund 
At year-end, the fund balance in CML’s capital projects fund was $116,516,743, a decrease of 
$6,410,029 in comparison with the prior year.  This decrease represents the amount in which building 
projects expenditures exceeded capital grants and contributions.  This trend is expected to continue as 
CML spends down the bond proceeds received in 2012.   
 
Debt Service Fund 
At year-end, the fund balance in CML’s debt service fund was $970,821, an increase of $1,279 in 
comparison with the prior year.  This increase represents the amount in which intergovernmental 
revenues are restricted for debt service expenditures.     
 
Other Governmental Funds 
At year-end, the fund balance in CML’s other governmental funds was $919,384, an increase of 
$153,883 in comparison with the prior year.  This increase is primarily the result of a $100,000 transfer in 
from the general fund.  In addition, charges for services and contributions slightly outstripped program 
expenditures.      
 
 
General Fund Budgeting Highlights 
 
CML’s budget is prepared according to Ohio law and is based on accounting for certain transactions 
on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund for 
2013 is the general fund. 
 
The original and final revenue budgets for the general fund were $74,598,370 and $69,368,008, 
respectively.  The significant decrease between the original and final budgets was primarily the result 
of a decrease in property tax collections as a result of a decrease in tax base and an increase in 
delinquencies. The variance between the final revenue budget and actual revenues was insignificant.  
 
The original and final expenditure budgets for the general fund were $69,592,311 and $63,775,055, 
respectively.  The significant decrease between the original and final budgets was primarily the result 
of a decrease in budgeted transfers out. The original budget included planned transfers out to fund 
the debt service fund; the transfers were later eliminated as a portion of the public library funding was 
deposited directly to the Debt Service fund.  Actual budgetary expenditures were $60,658,794, or 
$3,116,261 less than the final budget.  This decrease is primarily the result of cost containment 
efforts on behalf of management.   
 
CML’s ending budget basis Fund Balance for the general fund is $37,085,981. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

Capital Assets 
 
At the end of fiscal year 2013, CML had $71,647,172 invested in capital assets. Table 4 shows fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2013 compared to December 31, 2012. 
 

2013 2012

Land 12,828,942$    9,442,443$      
Construction in Progress 4,090,076        230,269           
Buildings and Improvements 54,094,274      55,429,752      
Machinery and Equipment 633,880           634,321           
Totals 71,647,172$   65,736,785$   

Governmental Activities

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

 
 
During 2013, CML invested $8,339,255 in additional Capital Assets, of which $7,246,306 was for new 
land and construction for multiple CML branch projects. See Note 4 for additional capital asset 
information. 
 

Capital Assets at December 31, 2013

Land

Construction in Progress

Buildings and Improvements

Machinery and Equipment

 
 
 
Debt 
 
At year-end, CML had general obligation bonds outstanding totaling $89,665,000, a decrease of 
$2,620,000 in comparison with the prior year.  This decrease represents debt principal payments made 
during the year.  See Note 10 for additional debt information. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

Economic Factors 
 
Legislation has eliminated the Personal Property portion of the tax levy.  This portion of the tax will be 
phased out through 2017.  
 
In addition, the recent difficulties of the housing market have led to higher delinquencies.  For 2013, 
CML collected only 87.8% of levied taxes, representing slightly more than a $6.7 million shortfall in 
collections for the year. 
 
 
Contacting CML’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens and taxpayers with a general overview of CML’s 
finances and to show CML’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about 
this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Wendy J. Mohr, Accounting Manager 
at Columbus Metropolitan Library, 96 South Grant Ave., Columbus, Ohio 43215 or by e-mail at 
wmohr@columbuslibrary.org. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2013

Governmental
Activities

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  160,443,992$    
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted  67,742               
Cash with Trustee  485,596             
Receivables:
Taxes 50,464,192        
Accounts 213,187             
Intergovernmental 4,412,844          
Interest 90,129               
Prepaid Items 818,151             
Capital Assets:

Nondepreciable 16,919,018        
Depreciable, Net 54,728,154        

Total Assets 288,643,005     

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2,213,021          
Accrued Wages and Benefits 1,144,039          
Intergovernmental Payable 559,561             
Retainage Payable 85,644               
Claims Payable 331,000             
Accrued Interest Payable 266,494             
Security Deposits 57,190               
Long-Term Liabilities:

Due Within One Year 2,804,716          
Due in More Than One Year 96,167,755        

Total Liabilities 103,629,420     

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property Taxes 43,219,909        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 43,219,909        

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 68,969,845        
Restricted for:
  Restricted Donations 569,448             
  Capital Projects 1,000,000          
  Debt Service 704,327             
  Permanent Fund - Expendable 597                    
  Permanent Fund - Non-expendable 67,742               
Unrestricted 70,481,717        
Total Net Position 141,793,676$    

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

  Net (Expense)  
  Revenue and  
  Changes in  

  Program Revenues    Net Position  
  Operating    Capital  

  Charges for    Grants and    Grants and    Governmental  
Functions/Programs   Expenses    Services    Contributions    Contributions    Activities  
Governmental Activities:  
General Government:  
    Public Service  34,350,249$  1,189,910$    323,669$       -$                   (32,836,670)$      
    Administrative and Support  24,431,281    1,415,195      -                     1,000,000      (22,016,086)        
    Interest on Long Term Debt  2,912,100      -                     -                     -                     (2,912,100)          
Total Governmental Activities  61,693,630$  2,605,105$    323,669$       1,000,000$    (57,764,856)        

General Revenues:  
    Property Taxes  47,651,678         
    Intergovernmental  29,027,326         
    Investment Earnings  473,331              
    Miscellaneous  395,067              
Total General Revenues  77,547,402         

Change in Net Position  19,782,546         

Net Position at Beginning of Year, Restated  122,011,130       
Net Position at End of Year  141,793,676$     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Capital Debt Other Total
General Projects Service Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  39,920,146$  117,404,986$ -$                  905,407$        158,230,539$ 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted  -                    -                    -                   67,742           67,742          
Cash with Trustee  -                    -                    485,596        -                    485,596         
Receivables:

Taxes 50,464,192    -                    -                   -                    50,464,192    
Accounts 169,763         -                    -                   -                    169,763         
Intergovernmental 3,928,017      -                    484,827        -                    4,412,844      
Interest 2,268             87,463          398               -                    90,129          

Prepaid Items 797,312         2,443            -                   18,396           818,151         
Total Assets 95,281,698$  117,494,892$ 970,821$       991,545$        214,738,956$ 

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,370,692$    826,658$        -$                  15,671$          2,213,021$     
Accrued Wages and Benefits 1,144,039      -                    -                   -                    1,144,039      
Intergovernmental Payable 559,561         -                    -                   -                    559,561         
Matured Compensated Absences 34,407           -                    -                   -                    34,407          
Retainage Payable 22,316           63,328          -                   -                    85,644          
Security Deposits -                    700               -                   56,490           57,190          

Total Liabilities 3,131,015       890,686           -                     72,161            4,093,862        

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property Taxes 43,219,909     -                      -                     -                     43,219,909      
Unavailable Revenue 6,921,795       87,463            -                     -                     7,009,258        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 50,141,704     87,463            -                     -                     50,229,167      

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items 797,312         2,443            -                   18,396           818,151         
Permanent Fund Principle -                    -                    -                   67,742           67,742          

Restricted for:
Capital Projects -                    94,844,176    -                   -                    94,844,176    
Debt Service -                    -                    970,821        -                    970,821         
Permanent Fund Expendable -                    -                    -                   597                597               
Restricted Donations -                    -                    -                   569,448         569,448         

Committed for:
Facility Projects 341,585         -                    -                   -                    341,585         
Technology Projects 1,167             -                    -                   -                    1,167            
Library Materials 348,206         -                    -                   -                    348,206         
Operations/Programing 198,797         -                    -                   -                    198,797         
Capital Projects -                    4,216,326      -                   -                    4,216,326      
Land Development -                    -                    -                   263,201         263,201         

Assigned for:
Facility Projects 1,540,385      -                    -                   -                    1,540,385      
Technology Projects 5,263             -                    -                   -                    5,263            
27th Pay Period 615,325         -                    -                   -                    615,325         
Capital Projects -                    17,453,798    -                   -                    17,453,798    

Unassigned 38,160,939    -                    -                   -                    38,160,939    
Total Fund Balances 42,008,979     116,516,743    970,821          919,384          160,415,927    

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 95,281,698$  117,494,892$ 970,821$       991,545$        214,738,956$ 

COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2013

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances

To Net Position of Governmental Activities
December 31, 2013

Total Governmental Fund Balances 160,415,927$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 71,647,172        

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are reported as unavailable in the funds.

Property Taxes Receivable 4,109,625          
Intergovernmental Receivable 2,812,170          

Interest Receivable 87,463               

Governmental funds report the effect of bond premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of net position.

Unamortized Premium on Bonds (6,839,232)         

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
health care to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of the 
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net position. 1,925,877          

Long-Term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Compensated absences payable (2,433,832)         
General Obligation Bonds Payable (89,665,000)       

Accrued Interest Payable (266,494)            

Net Position of Governmental Activities 141,793,676$    

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Capital Debt Other Total
General Projects Service Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:

Property Taxes 46,748,089$    -$                   -$                   -$                    46,748,089$   
Intergovernmental 20,397,788      -                    5,817,368     -                      26,215,156    
Fines and Fees 1,189,910       -                    -                    -                      1,189,910     
Investment Earnings 94,188           286,809        1,167            536                 382,700        
Charges for Services 710,775          2,127            -                    702,293          1,415,195     
Contributions and Donations -                     1,000,000     -                    323,669          1,323,669     
Miscellaneous 375,559          1                   -                    17,775            393,335        

Total Revenues 69,516,309      1,288,937     5,818,535     1,044,273       77,668,054    

Expenditures:
Current:

Public Service 32,947,418      -                    -                    353,576          33,300,994    
Administrative and Support 23,165,197      -                    -                    634,280          23,799,477    

Capital Outlay 326,588          8,604,209     -                    2,534              8,933,331     
Debt service:

Principal Retirement -                     -                    2,620,000     -                      2,620,000     
Interest and Fiscal Charges -                     -                    3,197,256     -                      3,197,256     

Total Expenditures 56,439,203      8,604,209     5,817,256     990,390          71,851,058    
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 13,077,106      (7,315,272)    1,279            53,883            5,816,996     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 1,732             905,243        -                    -                      906,975        
Transfers In -                     -                    -                    100,000          100,000        
Transfers Out (100,000)         -                    -                    -                      (100,000)       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (98,268)          905,243        -                    100,000          906,975        

Net Change in Fund Balances 12,978,838      (6,410,029)    1,279            153,883          6,723,971     

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 29,030,141      122,926,772  969,542        765,501          153,691,956  
Fund Balance at End of Year 42,008,979$    116,516,743$ 970,821$       919,384$        160,415,927$ 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 6,723,971$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Capital Outlays 8,339,255       
Depreciation Expense (1,523,625)      

The effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e. sales, trade-ins, and disposals) is to decrease net position. (905,243)         

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 3,803,222       

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-term debt consumes the current finanical resources of governmental 
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.

Principal Payments on Debt 2,620,000       

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures 
in governmental funds.

Compensated Absences (55,858)           
Accrued Interest (2,295)             

Amortization of Bond Premium 287,451          

The internal service fund used by management to charge the costs of insurance to
individual funds is not reported in the government-wide statement of activities.
Governmental fund expenditures and the related internal service fund revenues
are eliminated.  The net revenue (expense) of the internal service fund is
allocated among the governmental activities. 495,668          

Change in Position of Governmental Activities 19,782,546$   

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Property Taxes 51,813,765$   44,628,578$   45,157,157$   528,579$        
Intergovernmental 18,785,000    20,739,825    20,413,166    (326,659)         
Fines and Fees 900,000         900,000         1,184,555      284,555          
Investment Earnings 100,000         100,000         153,927          53,927            
Charges for Services 500,000         500,000         694,315          194,315          
Contributions and Donations -                     1,000             -                      (1,000)             
Miscellaneous 300,000         294,000         272,480          (21,520)           
    Total Revenues 72,398,765    67,163,403    67,875,600    712,197          

Expenditures
Current:

Public Service 35,859,632    35,896,495    33,471,438    2,425,057       
Administrative and Support 24,979,299    25,202,059    24,531,263    670,796          

Capital Outlay 736,519         468,510         348,102          120,408          
    Total Expenditures 61,575,450    61,567,064    58,350,803    3,216,261       

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 10,823,315    5,596,339      9,524,797      3,928,458       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets -                     5,000             1,732              (3,268)             
Transfers In 2,199,605      2,199,605      2,199,605      -                      
Transfers Out (8,016,861)     (2,207,991)     (2,307,991)     (100,000)         
    Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (5,817,256)     (3,386)            (106,654)        (103,268)         

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,006,059      5,592,953      9,418,143      3,825,190       

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    25,854,563    25,854,563    25,854,563    -                      
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,813,275      1,813,275      1,813,275      -                      
Fund Balances at End of Year 32,673,897$   33,260,791$   37,085,981$   3,825,190$     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
December 31, 2013

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service Fund
Assets
Current Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 2,213,453$                 
Receivables:

Accounts 43,424                        
Total Assets 2,256,877                   

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Claims Payable 331,000                      
Total Liabilities 331,000                      

Net Position
Unrestricted 1,925,877                   

Total Net Position 1,925,877$                 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service Fund
Operating Revenues
  Charges for Services 4,781,478$                 
  Miscellaneous 114,746                      
Total Operating Revenues 4,896,224                   

Operating Expenses
  Contractual Services 683,081                      
  Claims Paid 3,720,643                   
Total Operating Expenses 4,403,724                   

Operating Income (Loss) 492,500                      

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
  Interest Revenue 3,168                          
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 3,168                          

Change in Net Position 495,668                      

Net Position at Beginning of Year 1,430,209                   
Net Position at End of Year 1,925,877$                 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Cash Received for Claims 4,784,665$                 
  Cash Received from Reimbursements 73,646                        
  Cash Payments for Administrarive Fees (805,651)                     
  Cash Payments for Claims (3,702,643)                  
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 350,017                      

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Cash received from interest 4,344                          
Net Cash flows From Investing Activities 4,344                          

Net Change in Cash 354,361                      

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,859,092                   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 2,213,453$                 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
  Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Operating Income 492,500$                    

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets
Accounts Receivable (37,913)                       
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities
  Accounts Payable (122,570)                     
  Claims Payable 18,000                        

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 350,017$                    

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

December 31, 2013

Digital Downloads
Collaboration
Agency Fund

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 343,198$                
Accounts Receivable 20,270                    

Total Assets 363,468                  

Liabilities
  Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 363,468                  
Total Liabilities 363,468$                

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The Columbus Metropolitan Library (CML) was founded in 1872. CML is a county district library 
established in accordance with Section 3375.20 of the Ohio Revised Code.  CML lends books, 
periodicals, audiovisual materials, and provides access to technology to residents and certain others 
at no charge.  CML, which is a separate legal entity, is financially, managerially and operationally 
independent from both Franklin County and the City of Columbus. 
 
The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, GASB Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units – an amendment to GASB Statement 
No. 14, and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34 in that the financial statements include all the materially 
significant organizations, activities, functions and component units for which CML (the reporting entity) is 
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment authority of a voting 
majority of the component’s unit board, and either (1) CML’s ability to impose its will over the 
component unit or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or 
impose a financial burden on CML. 
 
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans. This statement 
establishes guidelines to improve financial reporting of state and local pension plans. This statement is 
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.  Management does not anticipate this statement 
having an effect on CML’s financial statements.   
 
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. 
This statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources, and expenditures related to costs of pension plans.  This statement is effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2014.  Management anticipates working with Ohio Public Employees 
Retirement System (OPERS) to determine the financial impact and accompanying disclosures of this 
statement, and is currently unable to disclose what impact this statement will have. 
 
The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of CML conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The 
following is a summary of its significant accounting policies: 
 
(a) Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
The financial information of CML is presented in this report as follows: 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides 

an analytical overview of CML’s financial activities and overall financial position. 
 
 Government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 

Activities. 
 

These statements report all of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and gains and losses 
of CML. Governmental activities are reported separately from business type activities. 
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues 
whereas business type activities are normally supported by fees and charges for services and 
are usually intended by management to be financially self-sustaining. Fiduciary funds are not 
included in these government-wide financial statements. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have been eliminated against the 
expenses and program revenues shown in governmental activities Statement of Activities. The 
activities of the internal service fund are eliminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and 
expenses which is consistent with CML policy for such activity. Interfund services provided and 
used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between the direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function of CML’s governmental activities. 
 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges 
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 
are presented as general revenues. 

 
 Fund financial statements consist of a series of statements focusing on information about CML’s 

major governmental funds. Separate financial statements are presented for the governmental and 
proprietary funds. 

 
CML’s major funds are the General Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service 
Fund. 
 
The General Fund is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except that which 
is required to be accounted for in other funds, is accounted for.  Its revenues consist 
primarily of taxes, intergovernmental shared revenue, fines and fees, charges for services, 
investment income and others. General Fund expenditures represent costs of public services, 
administration and support and capital outlay. 
 
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources set aside for the acquisition 
or the construction of major capital facilities and equipment. The revenues for this fund are 
derived from transfers from the General Fund, proceeds from the sale of debt, the sale of real 
property, donations, and other miscellaneous receipts. 
 
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and payment of 
debt; principal, interest and related expenditures. Revenue consists of a portion of CML’s PLF 
receipts. 

 
 Notes to the financial statements providing information that is essential to the user’s 

understanding of the basic financial statements. 
 
(b) Financial reporting presentation 
The accounts of CML are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures (expenses). Fund 
types are as follows: 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current 
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds 
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned 
to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and 
liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are CML's governmental funds: 
 
General Fund (Major Fund) - The General Fund is the general operating fund of CML. It is 
used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. The fund balance of the general fund is available to CML for any purpose provided it is 
expended or transferred according to the laws of Ohio. The General Fund is comprised of 
multiple accounts that are reported in one fund. 
 
Capital Project Fund (Major Fund) - Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial 
resources to be used for the acquisition of major capital assets or the construction of major 
capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds) or capital 
equipment. The Capital Projects Fund is comprised of multiple individual projects that are 
reported in one fund. 
 
Debt Service Fund (Major Fund) – Debt Service Funds are used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for and payment of long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. 
 
Other Governmental Funds 
Other governmental funds of CML are used to account for land development operations, 
restricted donations, grants, and any other resources which are restricted for a particular purpose. 
 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
 
Proprietary Funds are those which focus on the determination of operating income, changes in 
net position, financial position and cash flows. The following is CML's proprietary fund: 
 
Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of 
services provided by one department to another department on a cost reimbursement basis. 
CML’s internal service fund reports on the self-insurance health care program.  
 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
 
Fiduciary Funds are those which report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for other 
governments and therefore cannot be used to support CML’s programs or operations. The 
following is CML’s fiduciary fund: 
 
Agency Fund – The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held on behalf of other libraries 
and the liabilities associated with the use of assets. CML’s agency fund is used to report the 
assets held in a custodial manner to administer a collaboration of fifteen (15) library systems to 
acquire and share digital content with their customers. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(c) Measurement focus and basis of accounting 
 
Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by CML conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The 
accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by its measurement focus. 
 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related 
cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which CML gives (or receives) value without 
directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, shared revenues 
and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which 
the taxes are levied. On an accrual basis, revenue in the form of shared revenue is recognized when the 
provider government recognizes its liability to CML.  Revenues from grants and donations are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable 
and available.  CML considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the 
revenues are collected within sixty days after the fiscal year end.  Nonexchange transactions, under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, are recognized when the amounts are measureable, available and 
satisfy eligibility requirements.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated absences, 
which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due.  General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other 
financing sources. 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
(d) Encumbrances 
 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed in all funds. On the GAAP basis of accounting, encumbrances do not constitute expenditures 
or liabilities, but are reported as commitments or assignments of fund balances in governmental funds. 
 
(e) Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Proprietary Fund considers all highly liquid investments, 
with purchased maturities of three months or less, to be cash equivalents. 
 
(f) Investments 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments 
and for External Investment Pools, CML records all of its investments at fair value as defined in the 
Statement.  CML reports all investments at fair value except for non-negotiable certificates of deposit, 
which are reported at cost.  CML does not engage in any form of derivatives or reverse repurchase 
agreements in the management of its investment portfolio. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(g) Capital Assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the government-
wide financial statements. CML does not have any infrastructure assets. CML defines capital assets as 
assets with a unit cost of more than $5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
an asset’s life are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are completed.  Library 
books and materials purchased by CML are reflected as expenditures when purchased and are not 
capitalized as assets of CML.  CML currently has a library materials collection of approximately 
1,900,000 volumes. 
 
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 
 

Estimated
Description Life (years)

Buildings 60
Furniture/Artwork/Grounds Equipment 20
Land Development/Machinery & General Equipment 15
Bookmobiles 12
Other Vehicles/Business Machines/Printers/AudioVisual Equipment 10
Security Equipment 7
Computer Equipment & Software/Telecommunications Equipment 5  
 
(h) Insurance 
 
CML is insured by private carriers for property damage, personal injury and public official liability. 
Judgments and claims in excess of policy limits are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been 
impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.  At 
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, there were no outstanding judgments or claims in excess of 
policy limits.  In 2013, the Board authorized an increase in the limit for Directors & Officers/Employment 
Practices liability coverage from $5,000,000 to $15,000,000 per claim because of increased exposure 
related to CML’s building program.  Except for this, there were no significant changes in insurance 
coverage from the previous year and no insurance settlement has exceeded insurance coverage during 
the last three years. 
 
CML provides dental, vision, life and disability insurance coverage for employees through a private 
insurance carrier.  CML is part of the state-wide plan for Worker's Compensation insurance coverage.  
Beginning in 2001, CML established self-insured employee health care.  To account for and finance 
its uninsured health claims, CML established the Self Insurance Fund (an internal service fund).  All 
departments of CML participate in the program and make payments to the Self Insurance Fund based 
on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay current and future claims.  CML has purchased 
specific stop loss insurance for claims which exceed $110,000 per covered individual in one year and 
aggregate stop loss coverage at 125% of annual estimated claims. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2011 2012 2013
Unpaid Claims Jan. 1 277,000$      299,000$      313,000$      
Incurred Claims 3,630,839     3,765,366     3,720,643     
Payment of Claims (3,608,839)    (3,751,366)    (3,702,643)    
Unpaid Claims Dec. 31 299,000$      313,000$     331,000$     

 
 
The $331,000 of unpaid claims are reflected in the internal service fund's claims payable line item. 
 
(i) Compensated Absences 
 
CML employees accumulate one "bank" of hours for both sick and vacation called Paid Time Off 
(PTO).  These hours are vested at 100% when earned up to maximum limits defined by Board Policy.  
Payment is dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments was not readily 
determinable. However, management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the 
payment of PTO when such payments become due. 
 
The total liability for PTO has been calculated using pay rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and 
reduced to the maximum payment allowed by Board policy.  CML employees are granted PTO in varying 
amounts, based on scheduled hours and years of service. 
 
On governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences are recognized as liabilities and 
expenditures to the extent payments come due each period upon the occurrence of employee 
resignations and retirements. 
 
Any governmental fund liability reported is for the unpaid balance of reimbursable unused leave for 
employees that terminated on or before December 31, 2013.  All liabilities are paid from the general 
fund. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported. 
 
The noncurrent portion of the liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. 
 
(j) Debt Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts, and Deferred Amounts on Refundings 
 
Bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over the life of the bonds.  Deferred 
amounts on refundings are capitalized and amortized over the life of new bonds or the life of the old 
bonds, whichever is shorter.  Issuance cost is expensed in the year in which debt was issued in 
accordance with GASB 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. 
 
(k) Interfund Transactions 
 
Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as 
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds.  Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without 
a requirement of repayment are reported as interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers are reported as 
other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in the 
proprietary funds.  Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the 
funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the basic financial statements. 
 
Interfund transfers between governmental funds are eliminated for reporting on the government- wide 
financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(l) Prepaid Items 
 
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2013, are 
recorded as prepaid items.  Prepaid items consist primarily of insurance premiums, conferences and 
training, memberships and library material subscriptions. Prepaid items are accounted for using the 
consumption approach of accrual accounting that is items are recorded as an asset deferring the 
recognition of an expenditure until the month in which it should occur. 
 
(m) Budgetary Basis of Accounting 
 
Budget 
A budget of estimated cash receipts and disbursements, including encumbrances, is submitted to the 
County Auditor, as secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year for the fiscal 
year commencing the following January 1. 
 
Estimated Resources 
The County Budget Commission certifies the budget to CML by September 1.  As part of this 
certification, CML receives the official Certificate of Estimated Resources which states the projected 
receipts of each fund.  On or about January 1, this certificate is amended to include any unencumbered 
balances from the preceding year.  The total estimated receipts together with prior year carryover of 
unencumbered cash then serves as the basis for the annual appropriation.  Expenditures and 
encumbrances from any fund during the ensuing fiscal year must not exceed the amount stated in the 
Amended Certificate of Estimated Resources. 
 
Appropriations 
CML is required by state statute to adopt an annual appropriation cash basis budget.  A temporary 
appropriation measure to control cash disbursements is passed by CML’s Board of Trustees in December 
of each year to be effective as of January 1.  The permanent appropriation measure then must be 
passed by April 1 of each year for the period January 1 to December 31.  The permanent appropriation 
measure then may be amended or supplemented during the year as new information becomes available.  
Appropriations may not exceed estimated resources. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end 
except in Capital Projects Fund which has continuing appropriations. For the General Fund, any budget 
change that increases or decreases expenditures at the Salaries & Benefits or Other Expenditures 
(Supplies, Purchased/Contracted Services, Library Materials, etc.) level requires Board authorization.  
For all other funds, increases or decreases in expenditures requires Board authorization at the total 
appropriation level. 
 
The governmental fund types for which CML budgets annual expenditures are the General and Special 
Revenue Funds. The budget specifies expenditure amounts by function within these funds. Expenditures 
cannot exceed appropriations at the Salaries & Benefits and Other Expenditures (Supplies, 
Purchased/Contracted Services, Library Materials, etc.) levels for the General Fund and cannot 
exceed total appropriations for all other budgeted funds. In the supplemental reports, CML has provided 
a further breakdown of the legal reporting level. Capital Projects Fund revenues and expenditures are not 
budgeted on an annual basis; budgetary control over these fund types is established on a project basis. 
 
CML budgets annual expenses for two nongovernmental fund types, the Internal Service Fund and the 
Digital Downloads Fund. The budget specifies expense amounts by function within the fund. Expenses 
cannot exceed total appropriations. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

In addition to the annual expenditures/expenses budgeting described in the preceding paragraphs, all 
revenues, except for tax revenues, for the General Fund are estimated by the Fiscal Officer in 
conjunction with the annual budgeting process. However, the annual appropriations should not exceed 
the estimated resources as certified by the County Budget Commission in the annual Certificate of 
Estimated Resources. 
 
The Board has delegated purchase and expenditure approval to CML administration for daily 
operational needs of CML. Any appropriation change which will increase or decrease any of the major 
appropriation classifications requires approval of the Board. Expenditures did not exceed appropriations 
in any fund type. 
 
CML's budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than 
GAAP.  To provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget, the actual results of 
operations for governmental funds are presented in the Supplemental Data section of this report. 
 
The major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are as follows: 
 Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible 

to accrual (GAAP basis). 
 Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the liability is 

incurred (GAAP basis). 
 Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget basis), as opposed to a 

reservation of fund balance (GAAP basis). 
 
(n) Net Position 
 
Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources.  Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation, less any outstanding debt and debt-related items.  Net position is 
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling 
legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other 
governments. 
 
CML applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position are available. 
 
(o) Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. The principal 
operating revenues of CML’s proprietary funds are charges for services. Operating expenses for the 
proprietary funds include claims and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
(p) Fund Balance Reserves 
 
Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which CML is “bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts of the fund can be spent” in accordance with GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
CML considers fund balance non-spendable when it is in a non-spendable form (inventories or prepaids) 
or when the balance is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  Restricted fund balance 
is reported when constraints have been placed on the use of resources externally (grant agreements, 
legal requirements). Committed fund balance represents amounts committed for a specific use through 
formal Board resolution.  Assigned fund balance are those amounts intended to be used for a specific 
purpose that do not meet the definition of restricted or committed. The Board has authorized the Chief 
Financial Officer to assign fund balances as necessary.  In governmental funds other than the general 
fund net position that is not committed or restricted is assigned.  Residual fund balance in the general 
fund is unassigned.  In other governmental funds, only a deficit is reported as unassigned. 
 
CML considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available.  CML considers committed amounts 
used first, followed by assigned amounts; unassigned amounts are considered to have been spent when 
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance 
classifications could be used. 
 
(q) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statements of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position 
that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expenses/expenditure) until then.  CML currently has no deferred outflows of resources. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statements of financial position report a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources.  Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  For CML, 
deferred inflows of resources include property taxes and unavailable revenue.  Property taxes represent 
amounts for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of December 31, 2013, but which were levied to 
finance calendar year 2014 operations.  These amounts have been recorded as a deferred inflow on both 
the government-wide statement of net position and the governmental fund financial statements. 
Unavailable revenue is reported only on the governmental funds balance sheet, and represents 
receivables which will not be collected within the available period.  For CML, unavailable revenue 
includes delinquent property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest income.  These amounts 
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the amounts become available. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
CML pools all individual fund cash balances for investment purposes, except for cash with fiscal 
agents, restricted investments and debt proceeds.  According to state statutes and CML’s Investment 
policy, all earnings received from pooled investments must be credited to CML's General Fund, unless 
specified by CML’s Fiscal Officer.  Interest income earned on investments held in perpetuity is credited to 
CML's Permanent Fund. 
 
Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a security issuer to pay principal or interest, or the 
failure of the issuer to make timely payments of principal or interest. Eligible investments, pursuant to 
Ohio Revised Code Section 135.14, affected by credit risk include certificates of deposit, commercial 
paper and bankers acceptances. CML has no formal policy related to credit risk.  However, this risk is 
minimized by (1) diversifying assets by issuer; (2) ensuring that required, minimum credit quality ratings 
exist prior to the purchase of commercial paper and bankers acceptances; and (3) maintaining 
adequate collateralization of certificates of deposits, pursuant to the method as determined by the Fiscal 
Officer. 
 
CML’s Investment Policy addresses custodial risk in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §135.37, 
which states “collateral so pledged or deposited may be in an amount that when added to the portion of 
the deposit insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation … will, in the aggregate, equal or exceed 
the amount of public moneys so deposited …” 
 
Deposits: 
 
At December 31, 2013, the carrying amount of all CML's deposits was $16,483,163 and the bank 
balance was $16,615,899.  Of the bank balance, $15,278,402 was covered by Federal Deposit 
Insurance and $1,337,497 was uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the financial 
institution or by its trust department or agent but not in CML's name.  Restricted assets of $67,742 
represent the endowment principal of the restricted fund. 
 
Investments: 
 
CML adopted a formal investment policy. The objectives of the policy shall be the preservation of capital 
and protection of principal while earning investment interest. Safety of principal is the primary 
objective of the investment program. This policy covers all funds under the direct control of the Fiscal 
Officer. Funds are invested in accordance with Section 135 "Uniform Depository Act" of the Ohio 
Revised Code as revised by Senate Bill 81. 
 
The types of obligations eligible for investment and deposits are: 
 

1. U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds; various federal agency securities, including issues of 
Federal National Mortgage Assn. (FNMA), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. (FHLMC), 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Student Loan Marketing 
Assn. (SLMA), Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), and other agencies or 
instrumentalities of the United States. Eligible investments include securities that may be “called” 
(by the issuer) prior to final maturity date. All eligible investments may be purchased at a 
premium or a discount. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal 
government agencies or instrumentalities. 
 

2. Commercial paper notes issued by companies incorporated under the laws of the United 
States; specific limitations apply as defined under Ohio Revised Code Section 135.14(B)(7). 

 
3. Bankers acceptances issued by any domestic bank rated in the highest category by a 

nationally recognized rating agency; specific limitations apply as defined under Ohio Revised 
Code Section 135.14(B)(7). 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 

4. Certificates of deposit from any eligible institution mentioned in Ohio Revised Code Section 
135.32. 
 

5. No-load money market mutual funds rated in the highest category by at least one nationally 
recognized rating agency, investing exclusively in the same types of eligible securities as 
defined in Ohio Revised Code Sections 135.14(B)(1) and 135.14 (B)(2) and repurchase 
agreements secured by such obligations. Eligible money market funds shall comply with Ohio 
Revised Code Section 135.01, regarding limitations and restrictions. 
 

6. Repurchase agreements with any eligible institutions mentioned in Ohio Revised Code Section 
135.32, or any eligible securities dealer pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 135.32(J), 
except that such eligible securities dealers shall be restricted to primary government securities 
dealers. Repurchase agreements will settle on a delivery vs. payment basis with collateral held in 
safekeeping by a third party custodian as agreed to by the Fiscal Officer. The market value of 
securities subject to a repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the repurchase 
agreement by at least two percent as defined under the Ohio Revised Code. The Fiscal 
Officer reserves the right to require an additional percentage of collateral securing such 
repurchase agreements. 
 

7. The state treasurer’s investment programs (STAR Ohio & STAR Plus), pursuant to Ohio 
Revised Code Section 135.45. 

 
Investments of CML funds are prohibited or restricted as follows: 
 

1. The use of derivative securities, as defined by Ohio Revised Code Section 135.14, is expressly 
prohibited. 
 

2. The final maturity of all eligible investments is five years, unless the investment is matched to a 
specific obligation or debt of CML, and the investment is specifically approved by the Board of 
Trustees. 
 

3. A repurchase agreement under the terms of which the investing authority agrees to sell 
securities to a purchaser and agrees with that purchaser to unconditionally repurchase those 
securities. 
 

4. The investment into a fund established by another subdivision if the fund was established for the 
purpose of investing monies of other subdivisions. 
 

5. The use of leveraging, in which the investing authority uses its current investment assets as 
collateral for the purpose of purchasing other assets. 
 

6. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage. 
 

7. Contracting to sell securities that have not yet been acquired, for the purpose of purchasing 
such securities on the speculation that bond prices will decline. 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Cash and investments at year-end were as follows: 
 

Credit Maturity in Years
Fair Value Rating less than 1 1-3 3-5

STAR Ohio (State Treasurer's
Asset Reserve Program) 6,609,728$       AAAm1 6,609,728$    -$                   -$                   

US Treasury Securities 13,490,057       AA+1 1,000,820      12,489,237    -                     
Federal Agency Securities (Non-

callable) 64,680,832       AA+1 23,326,637    41,354,195    -                     
Federal Agency Securities

(Callable) 39,907,687       AA+1 -                     39,420,266    2 487,421         3

Federal Agency - Step-up 1,271,245         AA+1 -                     1,271,245      4 -                     
Commercial Paper 4,995,250         A1+1 4,995,250      -                     -                     
Money Market Fund 13,719,127       AAAm1 13,719,127    -                     -                     
Carrying Amount of Deposits 16,483,164       16,483,164    -                     -                     
Change Funds and

Imprest Balance 183,438            183,438         -                     -                     
Total 161,340,528$   66,318,164$ 94,534,943$ 487,421$      

Less: Cash and investments
- Agency Fund (343,198)           

Total Governmental Funds Cash 160,997,330     

Per Statement of Net Position:
Cash and Investments 160,443,992$   
Cash Equivalents - Restricted 67,742              
Cash with Trustee 485,596            
Total 160,997,330$   

1 - Standard & Poors.
2 - as of 04/29/14, $7,219,647 has been called, $26,708,880 is callable within 1 year
     and the remaining $5,491,740 is callable within 2 years.
3 - $487,421 is callable within 1 year.
4 - as of 04/29/14, $999,840 has been called and $271,405 is callable within 1 year.
 
STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Office, which allows governments 
within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the 
Securities Exchange Commission as an investment company, but does operate in a manner similar to 
Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. 
 
Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the investment 
could be sold for on December 31, 2013. 
 
STAR Plus is a cash management program that provides Ohio political subdivisions with access to 
hundreds of FDIC insured banks via one convenient account. STAR Plus accounts have no exposure 
to credit or market risk.  All deposits have full FDIC insurance and are backed by the full faith and credit 
of the U.S. Government. 
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NOTE 3 – DONOR RESTRICTED ENDOWMENTS 
 
CML’s Permanent Fund includes donor-restricted endowments. Non-Spendable Fund Balance includes 
the $67,742 non-spendable portion of the endowment, the $597 that is available for expenditure is 
restricted to comply with donors’ original intent. CML Board of Trustees is permitted to appropriate, for 
purposes consistent with the endowment’s intent, net appreciation, realized and unrealized, unless the 
endowment terms state otherwise. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2013, follows: 
 

Restated
Balance Balance

Jan 1, 2013 Additions Deletions Dec 31, 2013
Nondepreciable Assets:

Land 9,442,443$     3,386,499$    -$               12,828,942$    
Construction in Progress 230,269          3,859,807      -                 4,090,076        

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings & Improvements 82,272,374     905,243         (905,243)        82,272,374      
Machinery & Equipment 6,455,231       187,706         -                 6,642,937        

Total Capital Assets 98,400,317$   8,339,255$    (905,243)$      105,834,329$  

Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings & Improvements (26,842,622)    (1,335,478)     -                 (28,178,100)     
Machinery & Equipment (5,820,910)      (188,147)        -                 (6,009,057)       

Total Accumulated Depreciation (32,663,532)$  (1,523,625)$   -$               (34,187,157)$   

Total Capital Assets, net 65,736,785$   6,815,630$   (905,243)$     71,647,172$    

 
Projects were funded through the Capital Projects Fund by monies transferred from the General 
Fund and proceeds from the sale of debt. The balance of these Capital projects will be funded by 
available financial resources. 
 
Of the $1,523,625 depreciation expense, $862,070 was related to Public Service and $661,555 was 
related to Administrative and Support. 
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NOTE 5 – PENSION PLANS 
 
All employees of CML are required to participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 
(OPERS). OPERS administers three separate pension plans, as described below: 
 

1. The Traditional Pension Plan (TP) – a cost-sharing, multiple employer defined benefit pension 
plan. 

 
2. The Member-Directed Plan (MD) – a defined contribution plan in which the member invests 

both member and employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per 
year). Under the MD Plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of member 
(vested) employer contributions plus any investment earnings. 

 
3. The Combined Plan (CO) – a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. 

Under the CO Plan, employer contributions are invested by OPERS to provide a formula 
retirement benefit similar in nature to the TP Plan benefit. Member contributions, the investment 
of which is self-directed by the members, accumulate retirement assets in a manner similar to 
the MD Plan. 

 
OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits and annual cost of living adjustments 
to members of the TP Plan and the CO Plan. Members of the MD Plan do not qualify for ancillary 
benefits. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
OPERS issues a stand alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by writing to OPERS 
at 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 222-5601 or 1-800-222-7377. 
 
The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions. For 
2013, member and employer contribution rates were consistent across all three plans. For 2013, 
member contribution rates were 10.0% of their annual covered salary. The 2013 employer contribution 
rate was 14.00% of covered payroll. Total required employer contributions for all three plans are equal to 
100% of employer charges and should be extracted from the employer’s records. 
 
CML's contributions to OPERS for the years ending December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, were 
$3,780,406, $3,759,573, and $3,666,415 respectively. As of December 31, 2013 the full amount has been 
contributed. 
 
NOTE 6 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
In addition to the pension plans described in note 7, the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 
(OPERS) also maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare 
plan, which includes a medical plan, prescription drug program and Medicare Part B premium 
reimbursement, to qualifying members of the Traditional Pension (TP) and the Combined (CO) Plans. 
Members of the MD Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including post-employment health care 
coverage. In order to qualify for post-retirement health care coverage, age and service retirees must 
have 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients 
and qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by OPERS is 
considered an Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB), as described in GASB Statement No. 45. 
 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund post 
retirement health care through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each employer’s contribution to 
OPERS is set aside for the funding of post retirement health care benefits. 
 
Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of the covered payroll of active members. In 
2013, CML contributed 14.0% of covered payroll. The Ohio Revised Code currently limits CML’s 
contribution to a rate not to exceed 14.0% of covered payroll. Active members do not make contributions 
to the OPEB Plan. 
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NOTE 6 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
OPERS’ Post Employment Health Care plan was established in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
§401(h). Each year, the OPERS Retirement Board determines the portion of the employer rate that will 
be set aside for funding of post employment health care benefits. For all of 2013 CML’s 
contribution allocated to the health care plan was 1 .0% of covered payroll. The OPERS Retirement 
Board is also authorized to establish rules for the payment of a portion of the health care benefits 
provided, by the retiree or their surviving beneficiaries. Payment amounts vary depending on the 
number of covered dependents and the coverage selected. 
 
The rates stated above are actuarially determined contribution requirements for OPERS. The 
amount of actuarially determined Library contributions actually made to fund post-employment benefits 
was approximately $269,921 in 2013, $1,074,110 in 2012, and $1,041,005 in 2011. As of December 31, 
2013 the full amount has been contributed. 
 
The Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP) adopted by the OPERS Retirement Board on September 9, 
2004, was effective on January 1, 2007. Member and employer contribution rates increased as of 
January 1, 2006, January 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008, which will allow additional funds to be allocated 
to the health care plan. 
 
 
NOTE 7 – PROPERTY TAXES 
 
Property taxes include amounts levied against all real and public utility property located in CML district.  
Real property taxes and public utility taxes collected during 2013 were levied after October 1 on the 
assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. These taxes are payable annually or semi-
annually. If paid annually, payment is due by January 20; if paid semi-annually, the first payment 
is due by January 20 with remainder payable by June 20.  Under certain circumstances, state statutes 
permit earlier or later payment dates to be established. 
 
Assessed values are established by State law at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation of all 
property is required to be completed no less than every six years. The last revaluation was 
completed in 2010. Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property, as well as 
land and improvements, at true value, which is a certain percentage of cost. Percentages vary 
according to the type of utility involved. The assessed values upon which the 2013 taxes were collected 
were approximately $18.1 billion. 
 
Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 1% of assessed value 
without a vote of the people. Increases in the property tax rate are restricted only by voter willingness 
to approve such increases. In 1986, voters approved taxation of property for CML of .22% (2.2 mills) of 
assessed value effective January 1, 1986, for collection in 1987. This levy was to be collected for a 
period of 15 years and expired after the collection year 2002. In November 2000, the voters in 
Franklin County approved renewing the existing 2.2 levy. The collection year for the new levy began in 
2002. In November of 2010, the voters in Franklin County approved to replace the existing 2.2 mill 
levy with a new 2.2 mill levy and an increase of 0.6 mills, the collection year for the replacement levy 
began January 2011. 
 
The Franklin County Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of taxing districts in the county. The 
Franklin County Auditor periodically remits to CML its portion of the taxes collected. Property taxes with 
both a lien and levy date prior to fiscal year end are recorded as deferred inflows of resources and 
receivables. However, property taxes including delinquent property taxes that were measurable at 
December 31, 2013, and available to CML are recorded as revenues and receivables. 
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NOTE 8 – JOINT VENTURES 
 
In April 1992, CML's Board of Trustees adopted a resolution to participate with the Worthington Public 
Library (Worthington), a separate legal entity, to construct and operate a library facility, containing 
approximately 23,000 square feet of public service space, at a location which will serve both library 
districts. On October 13, 1993, a written contract was entered into between the two library districts. 
 
According to the terms of the agreement, CML will not assume any responsibility for the daily 
management, operation and maintenance of the building. In addition, the agreement states that CML will 
contribute, based on a formula, to the operational needs of the facility. In 2013, CML contributed 
$990,715 to the operational costs of Worthington. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The adjustments necessary to convert the results of General Fund operations and fund balances at end 
of year on the GAAP basis to the budgetary basis are as follows: 
 

Net Change in Fund Balance,
Fund Balance December 31, 2013

GAAP basis 12,978,838$       42,008,979$       
Increase (decrease):
Due to revenues:

Received in cash during 2013, but
accrued at December 31, 2012 2,772,997            -                       

Accrued at December 31, 2013, not
yet received in cash (4,413,675)          (4,413,675)           

Due to expenditures:
Paid in cash during 2013, accrued

at December 31, 2012 (1,410,694)          -                       
Accrued at December 31, 2013, not

yet paid in cash 1,718,932            1,718,932            
Due to encumbrances:

Recognized as expenditures in
budget (2,228,255)          (2,228,255)           

Budgetary Basis 9,418,143$          37,085,981$        
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NOTE 10 – LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Amount Due
Type of obligation Jan 1, 2013 Additions Deletions Dec 31, 2013 Within One Year
Governmental Activities:
General Obligation:

2012 PLF Notes - 
Taxable Serials - 1.456% 20,360,000$    -$              (2,620,000)$  17,740,000$ 2,620,000$   
Tax-Exempt Serial Bond - 4.084% 50,805,000      -                -                50,805,000   -                
Tax-Exempt Term Bond - 4.000% 21,120,000      -                -                21,120,000   -                
Unamortized premium 7,126,683        -                (287,451)       6,839,232     -                

Compensated Absences Payable 2,377,974        2,817,637     (2,727,372)    2,468,239     184,716        

Total Governmental Activities 101,789,657$  2,817,637$  (5,634,823)$ 98,972,471$ 2,804,716$  

 
(a) Long Term Debt 
On December 4, 2012, CML sold $92,285,000 of special obligation bonds to provide funds for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. The sale included tax-exempt bonds totaling 
$71,925,000 and taxable bonds of $20,360,000. The bonds were issued in anticipation of revenue 
from the state of Ohio’s Public Library Fund (PLF). Debt payments will be accounted for and paid 
from CML’s debt service fund. The first payment occurred in June 2013, and the final payment will 
occur in December 2037. 
 
(b) Future Debt Service 
The following table summarizes CML’s future debt obligations on its outstanding bonds. 
 

Year Ending December 31, Bond Principal Interest Debt Service
2014  $      2,620,000 $      3,197,924 $      5,817,924 
2015          2,635,000         3,183,776         5,818,776 
2016          2,650,000         3,165,858         5,815,858 
2017          2,680,000         3,140,418         5,820,418 
2018          2,705,000         3,110,670         5,815,670 

2019-2023        14,620,000       14,474,230       29,094,230 
2024-2028        18,280,000       10,814,300       29,094,300 
2029-2033        22,355,000         6,735,700       29,090,700 
2034-2037        21,120,000         2,153,400       23,273,400 

 $    89,665,000  $    49,976,276  $  139,641,276 

Governmental Activities

 
(c) Compensated Absences 
100% of the compensated absences liability will be liquidated with General Fund resources. 
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NOTE 11 – RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 
CML’s 2012 financial statements contained errors relating to the presentation of Net Capital Assets.  
Capital assets were understated.  Also, a small portion of the 2012 additions should have been in 
construction in progress and should not have been depreciated. The net effect of the restatement on net 
position is $217,681.  A summary of changes in net position for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as 
follows: 
 

Net
Position

Net Position, December 31, 2012 121,793,449$  
Capital Assets, Net 217,681           

Net Position, January 1, 2013 122,011,130$ 
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Major Funds 
 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Library.  It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Capital Projects Fund 
 
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and/or construction of major capital 
facilities and equipment other than those financed by Proprietary Funds. Active capital projects for 2013 
are: 
 

 Driving Park Branch Project 
 Whitehall Branch Project 
 Book Hauler Project (Closed in 

2013) 
 Main Library Renovation Project 
 Hilliard Branch Project 

 Northern Lights Branch Project 
 Martin Luther King Branch Project 
 Parsons Branch Project 
 Northside Branch Project 
 Shepard Branch Project 
 Dublin Branch Project 

 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report resources restricted, committed, or assigned to 
expenditure for principal and interest on debt.  In 2012 the Library’s Board of Trustees established a debt 
service fund and authorized the Library to issue debt in anticipation of its PLF revenue for the purpose of 
purchasing, leasing, constructing, renovating and improving library facilities. 
 
Non-Major Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for types of resources for which specific uses are mandated 
by Library Board policies, federal and/or state statutes, or other external donors.  The title of the fund is 
descriptive of the activities accounted for therein.  The Special Revenue Funds are: 
 

 Restricted Fund  Land Development Fund 
 
Permanent Fund 
 
The Permanent Fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only 
investment earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the Library’s programs. 
 
Internal Service Fund 
 
The Internal Service Fund is used to account for goods or services provided by one department to other 
departments of the Library.  The Library has an internal service fund to account for its Self-Insurance 
program. 
 
Agency Fund 
 
The Agency fund is used to account for funds held and administered by the Library on behalf of other 
government agencies.  The Library’s only agency fund is the Digital Downloads Collaboration which is 
used to administer a consortium of multiple libraries for the acquisition and distribution of digital content. 
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 Total
General General General 27th General

Operating Projects Liability Pay Period Fund
Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  36,383,508$ 2,337,719$ 583,594$      615,325$       39,920,146$ 
Receivables:
Taxes 50,464,192  -                 -                   -                     50,464,192  
Accounts 169,763       -                 -                   -                     169,763       
Intergovernmental 3,928,017    -                 -                   -                     3,928,017    
Interest 2,268           -                 -                   -                     2,268           
Prepaid Items 797,312       -                 -                   -                     797,312       
Total Assets 91,745,060$ 2,337,719$ 583,594$      615,325$       95,281,698$ 

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 911,497$      427,003$    32,192$        -$                   1,370,692$   
Accrued Wages and Benefits 889,932       -                 254,107       -                     1,144,039    
Intergovernmental Payable 262,266       -                 297,295       -                     559,561       
Matured Compensated Absences 34,407         -                 -                   -                     34,407         
Retainage Payable -                   22,316       -                   -                     22,316         
Total Liabilities 2,098,102    449,319     583,594       -                     3,131,015    

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property Taxes 43,219,909  -                 -                   -                     43,219,909  
Unavailable Revenue 6,921,795    -                 -                   -                     6,921,795    
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 50,141,704  -                 -                   -                     50,141,704  

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Items 797,312       -                 -                   -                     797,312       
Committed for:
Facility Projects -                   341,585     -                   -                     341,585       
Technology Projects -                   1,167         -                   -                     1,167           
Library Materials 348,206       -                 -                   -                     348,206       
Operations/Programing 198,797       -                 -                   -                     198,797       
Assigned for:
Facility Projects -                   1,540,385  -                   -                     1,540,385    
Technology Projects -                   5,263         -                   -                     5,263           
27th Pay Period -                   -                 -                   615,325         615,325       
Unassigned 38,160,939  -                 -                   -                     38,160,939  
Total Fund Balances 39,505,254  1,888,400  -                   615,325         42,008,979  

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balances 91,745,060$ 2,337,719$ 583,594$      615,325$       95,281,698$ 

COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Supplemental Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances

General Fund
As of December 31, 2013
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 Total
General General General 27th General

Operating Projects Liability Pay Period Fund
Revenues:
Property Taxes 46,748,089$ -$                  -$                  -$                   46,748,089$ 
Intergovernmental 20,397,788  -                   -                   -                     20,397,788  
Fines and Fees 1,189,910    -                   -                   -                     1,189,910    
Investment Earnings 94,188         -                   -                   -                     94,188         
Charges for Services 710,775       -                   -                   -                     710,775       
Miscellaneous 375,559       -                   -                   -                     375,559       
Total Revenues 69,516,309  -                   -                   -                     69,516,309  

Expenditures:
Current:
Public Service 32,840,731  106,687       -                   -                     32,947,418  
Administrative and Support 20,801,061  2,364,136    -                   -                     23,165,197  
Capital Outlay 126,909       199,679       -                   -                     326,588       
Total Expenditures 53,768,701  2,670,502    -                   -                     56,439,203  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 15,747,608  (2,670,502)   -                   -                     13,077,106  

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 1,732           -                   -                   -                     1,732           
Transfers In (2,199,605)  1,994,605    -                   205,000         -                   
Transfers Out -                   (100,000)      -                   -                     (100,000)     
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,197,873)  1,894,605    -                   205,000         (98,268)       

Net Change in Fund Balances 13,549,735  (775,897)      -                   205,000         12,978,838  

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 25,955,519  2,664,297    -                   410,325         29,030,141  
Fund Balance at End of Year 39,505,254$ 1,888,400$   -$                  615,325$       42,008,979$ 

COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Supplemental Schedule of Revenues

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
General Fund
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Supplemental Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Project Balances

Capital Projects Fund
As of December 31, 2013

Capital Project Driving Park Whitehall Book Main Library Hilliard
Non-Project Branch Branch Hauler Renovation Branch

Related Project Project Project Project Project

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash

and Investments 101,136,616$ 3,312,754$    6,332,929$    -$                    963,474$        961,356$       
Receivables:
Interest 87,463            -                     -                    -                     -                     -                    
Prepaid Items -                      2,443             -                    -                     -                     -                    
Total Assets 101,224,079$ 3,315,197$    6,332,929$    -$                    963,474$        961,356$       

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable -$                    499,232$       293,505$       -$                    -$                   -$                   
Security Deposits -                      700                -                    -                     -                     -                    
Retainage Payable -                      63,328           -                    -                     -                     -                    
Total Liabilities -                      563,260         293,505        -                     -                     -                    

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Revenue 87,463            -                     -                    -                     -                     -                    
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 87,463            -                     -                    -                     -                     -                    

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Items -                      2,443             -                    -                     -                     -                    
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 88,237,907     -                     -                    -                     963,474          961,356        
Committed for:
Capital Projects -                      2,621,460      1,594,866     -                     -                     -                    
Assigned for:
Capital Projects 12,898,709     128,034         4,444,558     -                     -                     -                    
Total Fund Balances 101,136,616   2,751,937      6,039,424     -                     963,474          961,356        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balances 101,224,079$ 3,315,197$    6,332,929$    -$                    963,474$        961,356$       
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Northern Lights Martin Luther Parsons Northside Shepard Dublin
Branch King Branch Branch Branch Branch Branch
Project Project Project Project Project Project Totals

 

602,160$        961,794$        (253,919)$       944,115$       473,267$       1,970,440$    117,404,986$   

-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     87,463              
-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     2,443                

602,160$        961,794$        (253,919)$       944,115$       473,267$       1,970,440$    117,494,892$   

-$                    -$                    796$               25,813$         7,312$           -$                    826,658$          
-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     700                  
-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     63,328              
-                      -                      796                 25,813           7,312            -                     890,686            

-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     87,463              
-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     87,463              

 

-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     2,443                

602,160          961,794          (254,715)         918,302         465,955        1,970,440     94,826,673       

-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     4,216,326         

-                      -                      -                      -                     -                    -                     17,471,301       
602,160          961,794          (254,715)         918,302         465,955        1,970,440     116,516,743     

602,160$        961,794$        (253,919)$       944,115$       473,267$       1,970,440$    117,494,892$   
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Supplemental Schedule of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Project Balance
Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Capital Project Driving Park Whitehall Book Main Library Hilliard
Non-Project Branch Branch Hauler Renovation Branch

Related Project Project Project Project Project

Revenues:
Investment Earnings 286,809$          -$                 -$                 -$                  -$                 -$                 
Charges for Services -                        -                  -                  -                   -                   -                  
Contributions and Donations 1,000,000         -                  -                  -                   -                   -                  
Miscellaneous 1                       -                  -                  -                   -                   -                  
Total Revenues 1,286,810         -                  -                  -                   -                   -                  

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay -                        2,664,144    946,813       87,591         2,528,826      38,644         
Total Expenditures -                        2,664,144    946,813       87,591         2,528,826      38,644         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 1,286,810         (2,664,144)  (946,813)     (87,591)       (2,528,826)    (38,644)       

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 905,243            -                  -                  -                   -                   -                  
Transfers In 17,503              -                  -                  -                   -                   -                  
Transfers Out -                        -                  -                  (17,503)       -                   -                  
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 922,746            -                  -                  (17,503)       -                   -                  

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,209,556         (2,664,144)  (946,813)     (105,094)     (2,528,826)    (38,644)       

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 98,927,060       5,416,081    6,986,237    105,094       3,492,300      1,000,000    
Fund Balance at End of Year 101,136,616$   2,751,937$   6,039,424$   -$                  963,474$       961,356$      
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Northern Lights Martin Luther Parsons Northside Shepard Dublin
Branch King Branch Branch Branch Branch Branch
Project Project Project Project Project Project  Totals 

-$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                 -$                 286,809$          
-                    -                    2,127             -                   -                  -                  2,127               
-                    -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,000,000        
-                    -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1                      
-                    -                    2,127             -                   -                  -                  1,288,937        

397,840         38,206           1,256,842      81,698          534,045       29,560         8,604,209        
397,840         38,206           1,256,842      81,698          534,045       29,560         8,604,209        

(397,840)       (38,206)         (1,254,715)    (81,698)        (534,045)     (29,560)       (7,315,272)       

-                    -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  905,243           
-                    -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  17,503             
-                    -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  (17,503)            
-                    -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  905,243           

(397,840)       (38,206)         (1,254,715)    (81,698)        (534,045)     (29,560)       (6,410,029)       

1,000,000      1,000,000      1,000,000      1,000,000     1,000,000    2,000,000    122,926,772    
602,160$       961,794$       (254,715)$     918,302$      465,955$      1,970,440$   116,516,743$   
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2013

Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor

Special Revenue Permanent Governmental
Funds Fund Totals

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  904,810$        597$               905,407$        
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted  -                     67,742           67,742            
Prepaid Items 18,396           -                      18,396            
Total Assets 923,206$        68,339$          991,545$        

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 15,671$          -$                     15,671$          
Security Deposits 56,490           -                      56,490            
Total Liabilities 72,161           -                      72,161            

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items 18,396           -                      18,396            
Permanent Fund Principle -                     67,742           67,742            

Restricted for:
Permanent Fund Expendable -                     597                597                 
Restricted Donations 569,448         -                      569,448          
Land Development 263,201         -                      263,201          

Total Fund Balances 851,045         68,339           919,384          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 923,206$        68,339$          991,545$        
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor

Special Revenue Permanent Governmental
Funds Fund Totals

Revenues:
Investment Earnings 511$               25$                  536$               
Charges for Services 702,293         -                      702,293           
Contributions and Donations 323,669         -                      323,669           
Miscellaneous 17,775           -                      17,775            
Total Revenues 1,044,248      25                   1,044,273        

Expenditures:
Current:

Salaries and Benefits 34,870           -                      34,870            
Supplies 251,108         -                      251,108           
Purchased Services 62,446           -                      62,446            
Library Materials 5,152             -                      5,152              

Public Service 353,576         -                      353,576           

Supplies 66,907           -                      66,907            
Purchased Services 567,373         -                      567,373           

Administrative and Support 634,280         -                      634,280           

Capital Outlay 2,534             -                      2,534              

Total Expenditures 990,390         -                      990,390           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 53,858           25                   53,883            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 100,000         -                      100,000           
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 100,000         -                      100,000           

Net Change in Fund Balances 153,858         25                   153,883           

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 697,187         68,314           765,501           
Fund Balance at End of Year 851,045$        68,339$          919,384$         
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2013

Total
Nonmajor

Restricted Land Special Revenue
Donation Development Funds

Assets:  
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments  585,119$        319,691$        904,810$         
Prepaid Items -                     18,396           18,396            
Total Assets 585,119$        338,087$        923,206$         

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 15,671$          -$                     15,671$          
Security Deposits -                     56,490           56,490            
Total Liabilities 15,671           56,490           72,161            

Fund Balances:  
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items -                     18,396           18,396            
Restricted for:

Restricted Donations 569,448         -                      569,448           
Committed for:

Land Development -                     263,201         263,201           
Total Fund Balances 569,448         281,597         851,045           

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 585,119$        338,087$        923,206$         
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Total
Nonmajor

Restricted Land Special Revenue
Donation Development Funds

Revenues:
Investment Earnings -$                    511$               511$               
Charges for Services -                     702,293         702,293           
Contributions and Donations 323,669         -                      323,669           
Miscellaneous -                     17,775           17,775            
Total Revenues 323,669         720,579         1,044,248        

Expenditures:
Current:

Salaries and Benefits 34,870           -                      34,870            
Supplies 251,108         -                      251,108           
Purchased Services 62,446           -                      62,446            
Library Materials 5,152             -                      5,152              

Public Service 353,576         -                      353,576           

Supplies -                     66,907           66,907            
Purchased Services -                     567,373         567,373           

Administrative and Support -                     634,280         634,280           

Capital Outlay 2,534             -                      2,534              

Total Expenditures 356,110         634,280         990,390           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures (32,441)          86,299           53,858            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 100,000         -                      100,000           
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 100,000         -                      100,000           

Net Change in Fund Balances 67,559           86,299           153,858           
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 501,889         195,298         697,187           
Fund Balance at End of Year 569,448$        281,597$        851,045$         
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
  Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Property Taxes 51,813,765$  44,628,578$  45,157,157$  528,579$      
Intergovernmental 18,785,000   20,739,825   20,413,166   (326,659)     
Fines and Fees 900,000        900,000        1,184,555      284,555       
Investment Earnings 100,000        100,000        153,927         53,927         
Charges for Services 500,000        500,000        694,315         194,315       
Contributions and Donations -                    1,000            -                     (1,000)         
Miscellaneous 300,000        294,000        272,480         (21,520)       
    Total Revenues 72,398,765   67,163,403   67,875,600   712,197       

Expenditures
Current:

Public Service:
Salaries and Benefits 26,252,489   26,288,440   24,554,077   1,734,363    
Supplies 367,419        390,615        353,363         37,252         
Purchased Services 1,321,185     1,152,475     1,055,188      97,287         
Library Materials 7,798,539     7,787,815     7,375,560      412,255       

Administrative and Support:
Salaries and Benefits 9,430,336     9,394,385     10,816,376   (1,421,991)  
Supplies 1,200,499     1,252,883     1,168,484      84,399         
Purchased Services 8,636,048     9,103,017     8,586,612      516,405       
Library Materials 2,000            2,322            2,289             33                
Other 1,472,000     1,098,982     990,716         108,266       

Capital Outlay 149,956        151,151        148,806         2,345           
    Total Expenditures 56,630,471   56,622,085   55,051,471   1,570,614    

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 15,768,294   10,541,318   12,824,129   2,282,811    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets -                    5,000            1,732             (3,268)         
Transfers In -                    -                    -                     -                  
Transfers Out (8,016,861)    (2,207,991)    (2,207,991)    -                  
    Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (8,016,861)    (2,202,991)    (2,206,259)    (3,268)         

Net Change in Fund Balance 7,751,433     8,338,327     10,617,870   2,279,543    

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    22,855,218   22,855,218   22,855,218   -                  
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,451,920     1,451,920     1,451,920      -                  
Fund Balances at End of Year 32,058,571$  32,645,465$  34,925,008$  2,279,543$   

  General Operating Account  
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Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

-$                    -$                    -$                   -$                 
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  

-                      -                      -                     -                  
120,000          272,150          129,469          142,681       

-                      5,000              3,781             1,219           
-                      -                      -                     -                  

-                      -                      -                     -                  
313,377          370,777          243,491          127,286       

3,925,039       3,979,693       2,723,295       1,256,398    
-                      -                      -                     -                  
-                      -                      -                     -                  

586,563          317,359          199,296          118,063       
4,944,979       4,944,979       3,299,332       1,645,647    

(4,944,979)      (4,944,979)      (3,299,332)      1,645,647    

-                      -                      -                     -                  
1,994,605       1,994,605       1,994,605       -                  

-                      -                      (100,000)         (100,000)     
1,994,605       1,994,605       1,894,605       (100,000)     

(2,950,374)      (2,950,374)      (1,404,727)      1,545,647    

2,589,020       2,589,020       2,589,020       -                  
361,355          361,355          361,355          -                  

1$                   1$                   1,545,648$     1,545,647$   

(continued)

  General Projects Account  
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
  Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Property Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                 
Intergovernmental -                    -                    -                     -                  
Fines and Fees -                    -                    -                     -                  
Investment Earnings -                    -                    -                     -                  
Charges for Services -                    -                    -                     -                  
Contributions and Donations -                    -                    -                     -                  
Miscellaneous -                    -                    -                     -                  
    Total Revenues -                    -                    -                     -                  

Expenditures
Current:
Public Service:
Salaries and Benefits -                    -                    -                     -                  
Supplies -                    -                    -                     -                  
Purchased Services -                    -                    -                     -                  
Library Materials -                    -                    -                     -                  
Administrative and Support:
Salaries and Benefits -                    -                    -                     -                  
Supplies -                    -                    -                     -                  
Purchased Services -                    -                    -                     -                  
Library Materials -                    -                    -                     -                  
Other -                    -                    -                     -                  
Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                     -                  
    Total Expenditures -                    -                    -                     -                  

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                    -                    -                     -                  

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets -                    -                    -                     -                  
Transfers In 205,000        205,000        205,000         -                  
Transfers Out -                    -                    -                     -                  
    Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 205,000        205,000        205,000         -                  

Net Change in Fund Balance 205,000        205,000        205,000         -                  

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    410,325        410,325        410,325         -                  
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated -                    -                    -                     -                  
Fund Balances at End of Year 615,325$       615,325$       615,325$        -$                 

  27th Pay Period Account  
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Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

51,813,765$   44,628,578$   45,157,157$   528,579$      
18,785,000     20,739,825     20,413,166     (326,659)     

900,000          900,000          1,184,555       284,555       
100,000          100,000          153,927          53,927         
500,000          500,000          694,315          194,315       

-                      1,000              -                     (1,000)         
300,000          294,000          272,480          (21,520)       

72,398,765     67,163,403     67,875,600     712,197       

26,252,489     26,288,440     24,554,077     1,734,363    
487,419          662,765          482,832          179,933       

1,321,185       1,157,475       1,058,969       98,506         
7,798,539       7,787,815       7,375,560       412,255       

9,430,336       9,394,385       10,816,376     (1,421,991)  
1,513,876       1,623,660       1,411,975       211,685       

12,561,087     13,082,710     11,309,907     1,772,803    
2,000              2,322              2,289             33                

1,472,000       1,098,982       990,716          108,266       
736,519          468,510          348,102          120,408       

61,575,450     61,567,064     58,350,803     3,216,261    

10,823,315     5,596,339       9,524,797       3,928,458    

-                      5,000              1,732             (3,268)         
2,199,605       2,199,605       2,199,605       -                  

(8,016,861)      (2,207,991)      (2,307,991)      (100,000)     
(5,817,256)      (3,386)             (106,654)         (103,268)     

5,006,059       5,592,953       9,418,143       3,825,190    

25,854,563     25,854,563     25,854,563     -                  
1,813,275       1,813,275       1,813,275       -                  

32,673,897$   33,260,791$   37,085,981$   3,825,190$   

  Combining General Fund Totals  
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Restricted - Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Contributions and Donations 300,000$       500,000$       323,669$       (176,331)$      
    Total Revenues 300,000        500,000        323,669        (176,331)        

Expenditures
Current:

Public Service:
Salaries and Benefits 42,251          42,251          36,889           5,362             
Supplies 330,772        412,843        253,175        159,668         
Purchased Services 79,732          147,150        50,450           96,700           
Library Materials 24,958          25,633          8,364             17,269           

Administrative and Support:
Other 354,177        381,384        -                     381,384         

Capital Outlay 1,000            3,600            2,534             1,066             
    Total Expenditures 832,890        1,012,861     351,412        661,449         

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (532,890)       (512,861)       (27,743)          485,118         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In -                    -                    100,000        100,000         
    Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                    -                    100,000        100,000         

Net Change in Fund Balance (532,890)       (512,861)       72,257           585,118         

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    420,155        420,155        420,155        -                     
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 92,707          92,707          92,707           -                     
Fund Balances at End of Year (20,028)$        1$                  585,119$       585,118$       
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Land Development - Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Investment Earnings 1,477$           1,477$           1,160$            (317)$             
Charges for Services 671,430        671,430        699,988        28,558           
Miscellaneous 21,000          21,000          17,775           (3,225)            
    Total Revenues 693,907        693,907        718,923        25,016           

Expenditures
Current:

Adminstrative and Support:
Supplies 64,000          77,400          67,368           10,032           
Purchased Services 620,393        641,993        636,879        5,114             

    Total Expenditures 684,393        719,393        704,247        15,146           

Net Change in Fund Balance 9,514            (25,486)         14,676           40,162           

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    248,525        248,525        248,525        -                     
Fund Balances at End of Year 258,039$       223,039$       263,201$       40,162$         
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Permanent Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Investment Earnings 50$                50$                26$                 (24)$               
    Total Revenues 50                 50                 26                  (24)                 

Expenditures
Current:

Public Service:
Library Materials 571               571               -                     571                

Administrative and Support:
Other 49                 49                 -                     49                  

    Total Expenditures 620               620               -                     620                

Net Change in Fund Balance (570)              (570)              26                  596                

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    571               571               571                -                     
Fund Balances at End of Year 1$                  1$                  597$               596$              
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual (Over)/Under

Revenues
Intergovernmental 5,817,256$    5,817,256$    5,817,312$    56$                
Investment Earnings -                    -                    769                769                

Total Revenues 5,817,256     5,817,256     5,818,081     825                

Expenditures
Debt service:

Principal Retirement 2,620,000     2,620,000     2,620,000     -                     
Interest and Fiscal Charges 3,197,256     3,197,256     3,197,256     -                     

Total Expenditures 5,817,256     5,817,256     5,817,256     -                     

Net Change in Fund Balance -                    -                    825                825                

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year    484,771        484,771        484,771        -                     
Fund Balances at End of Year 484,771$       484,771$       485,596$       825$              
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Agency Fund - Digital Download Collaboration

December 31, 2013

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2013 Additions Deletions 2013
Assets
  Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 225,724$        117,474$        -$                     343,198$        
  Accounts Receivable -                      20,270           -                      20,270            
Total Assets 225,724          137,744         -                      363,468          

Liabilities
  Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 225,724          1,463,270      1,325,526      363,468          
Total Liabilities 225,724$        1,463,270$     1,325,526$     363,468$        
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 
This section of the Columbus Metropolitan Library’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) presents current and historical information as a context for understanding the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required information. 
 
 Pages 
 
Financial Trends 66-69 
 
These schedules summarize financial information to assist the reader in analyzing and 
understanding how the Library’s financial performance and condition changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity 70-76 
 
These schedules contain information to assist the reader in evaluating factors affecting the 
Library’s ability to generate property tax revenue. 
 
Debt Capacity 77-79 
 
These schedules contain information to help the reader in evaluating the Library’s ability to 
pay off long term debt. 
 
Economic and Demographic Information 80-81 
 
These schedules offer economic and demographic indicators to assist the reader in 
understanding environmental factors that influence the Library’s financial activities. 
 
Operating Information 82-85 
 
These schedules assist the reader in measuring the Library’s financial performance as it 
relates to various operational statistics. 
 
 
 
 
 
Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year. In fiscal year 2011, the Library 
implemented GASB No. 54, schedules reporting fund balance classifications commenced that 
year. 
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Columbus Metropolitan Library
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property,
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands)

Real Property Personal Property

Estimated Estimated
Tax Assessed Actual Assessed Actual

Year1 Value Value Value Value

2004 $15,432,104 $44,091,726 $1,575,753 $6,303,012
2005 17,927,605 51,221,729 1,154,863 4,619,452
2006 18,455,997 52,731,420 814,754 3,259,016
2007 18,820,172 53,771,920 466,184 1,864,736
2008 19,197,804 54,850,869 58,937 589,370
2009 19,279,860 55,085,314 29,468 294,680
2010 19,631,342 56,089,549 0 0
2011 17,840,838 50,973,823 0 0
2012 18,140,629 51,830,369 0 0
2013 17,594,534 50,270,097 0 0

Source:   Franklin County Auditor

1Tax year ended December 31, yyyy represents the year taxes are collected.  However, they are applied 

2 Rate per $1,000 of assessed value
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Public Utilities Total

Assessed
Estimated Estimated Total Value as a

Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Direct Percentage of

Value Value Value Value Tax Rate2 Actual Value

$608,039 $1,737,254 $17,615,896 $52,131,992 $16.99 33.791%
579,631 1,656,089 19,662,099 57,497,270 17.79 34.197
549,787 1,570,820 19,820,538 57,561,256 17.79 34.434
408,559 1,167,311 19,694,915 56,803,967 17.79 34.672
422,371 1,206,774 19,679,112 56,647,013 17.84 34.740
436,874 1,248,211 19,746,202 56,628,205 18.02 34.870
470,486 1,344,246 20,101,828 57,433,795 18.07 35.000
472,145 1,348,986 18,312,983 52,322,809 18.07 35.000
499,509 1,427,169 18,640,138 53,257,538 18.47 35.000
546,095 1,560,271 18,140,629 51,830,368 18.47 35.000

the following year (e.g. taxes collected in 2013 are applied in 2014).
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Columbus Metropolitan Library
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of December 31, 2013

Estimated Amount
Debt Percentage Applicable to

Government Unit: Outstanding Applicable Primary Government
Direct Debt:

Columbus Metropolitan Library 89,665,000$             * 100.00% 89,665,000$             

Overlapping Debt:
Franklin County 189,405,000 69.33% 131,314,487
Canal Winchester City 2,910,235 88.44% 2,573,812
Columbus City 1,059,985,761 80.25% 850,638,573
Dublin City 12,025,000 84.01% 10,102,203
Gahanna City 19,755,000 100.00% 19,755,000
Grandview Heights City 2,730,000 0.03% 819
Groveport City - 100.00% -
Hilliard City 12,470,000 100.00% 12,470,000
New Albany City 15,085,000 98.33% 14,833,081
Reynoldsburg City 2,954,400 70.50% 2,082,852
Whitehall City 855,000 100.00% 855,000
Brice Village - 100.00% -
Lithopolis Village 201,300 3.93% 7,911
Lockbourne Village - 99.15% -
Obetz Village - 100.00% -
Valleyview Village - 100.00% -
Blendon Township - 1.06% -
Brown Township - 100.00% -
Clinton Township - 100.00% -
Franklin Township - 6.69% -
Hamilton Township - 100.00% -
Jackson Township - 0.54% -
Jefferson Township 1,004,000 100.00% 1,004,000
Madison Township 330,947 99.51% 329,325
Mifflin Township 1,255,000 100.00% 1,255,000
Norwich Township - 100.00% -
Perry Township - 21.91% -
Plain Township 1,475,452 98.85% 1,458,484
Pleasant Township - 0.05% -
Prairie Township 9,740,000 25.96% 2,528,504
Sharon Township - 4.21% -
Truro Township - 100.00% -
Washington Township 1,587,566 84.42% 1,340,223
Columbus City School District 479,726,887 99.97% 479,582,969
Dublin City School District 155,343,617 78.87% 122,519,511
Gahanna-Jefferson City School District 26,843,208 100.00% 26,843,208
Hilliard City School District 130,060,711 99.99% 130,047,705
Reynoldsburg City School District 99,794,988 74.06% 73,908,168
Upper Arlington City School District 23,731,187 1.46% 346,475
Whitehall City School District 27,999,994 100.00% 27,999,994
Canal Winchester L School District 56,625,868 73.39% 41,557,725
Groveport Madison L School District 5,113,190 100.00% 5,113,190
Hamilton L School District 21,217,260 100.00% 21,217,260
Licking Heights L School District 50,794,082 53.09% 26,966,578
New Albany-Plain L School District 87,685,973 99.99% 87,677,204
Career & Tech Ed Ctr Licking Co (C-Tec) Jt. Voc. Scho 21,924,991 6.79% 1,488,707
Eastland-Fairfield Career & Technical Jt. Voc. School 2,800,000 58.40% 1,635,200
Tolles Career & Technical Center Jt. Voc. School Distric 2,780,000 71.09% 1,976,302
Central Ohio Transit Authority Miscellaneous - 66.61% -
Metro Columbus-Franklin Co. Park Dist. Miscellaneous - 69.33% -
New Albany Community Authority Miscellaneous - 99.16% -
New Albany Plain Local Park District Miscellaneous 8,799,476 99.16% 8,725,560
Rickenbacker Port Authority Miscellaneous - 69.34% -
Solid Waste Authority Of Central Ohio Miscellaneous - 66.30% -
Westerville-Minerva Park Hospital Dist. Miscellaneous - 0.12% -

Source: Ohio Municipal Advisory Council (OMAC)

*Balance reflects amounts reported in the OMAC's system, which includes a $220,000 debt liability which the Library has paid. The 
   library is in the process of updating OMAC's records
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Columbus Metropolitan Library
Operation Indicators,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Number of Number of
Library Materials Registered

Year Circulated Borrowers

2004 16,018,594 448,422
2005 16,490,338 467,986
2006 16,489,899 478,465
2007 16,931,576 486,674
2008 17,404,840 479,219
2009 16,526,936 539,005
2010 13,822,999 644,671
2011 14,204,719 708,451
2012 14,808,957 728,373
2013 14,649,082 728,373
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Columbus Metropolitan Library
Employment Trend,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of
Number of Change

Year Library Employees1 Over Prior Year

2004 873 -4.80%
2005 837 -4.12%
2006 811 -3.11%
2007 793 -2.22%
2008 797 0.50%
2009 792 -0.63%
2010 785 -0.88%
2011 794 1.15%
2012 762 -4.03%
2013 744 -2.36%

(1) Includes full-time, part-time and part-time temporary employees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Columbus Metropolitan Library 
Franklin County 
96 South Grant Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
To the Board of Trustees: 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards,  the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Columbus 
Metropolitan Library, Franklin County, (the Library) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 22, 2014.  

 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
As part of our financial statement audit, we considered the Library’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances to the extent 
necessary to support our opinions on the financial statements, but not to the extent necessary to opine on 
the effectiveness of the Library’s internal control.  Accordingly, we have not opined on it.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct 
misstatements.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies resulting 
in a reasonable possibility that internal control will not prevent or detect and timely correct a material 
misstatement of the Library’s financial statements.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.   
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all internal control deficiencies that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider material weaknesses.  However, unidentified material weaknesses may exist. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 

 
As part of reasonably assuring whether the Library’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, opining on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters we must report under Government Auditing Standards.   
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Columbus Metropolitan Library 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Required by Government Auditing Standards 
Page 2 
 
Purpose of this Report 

 
This report only describes the scope of our internal control and compliance testing and our testing results, 
and does not opine on the effectiveness of the Library’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed under Government Auditing Standards in considering the Library’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Kennedy Cottrell Richards LLC 
May 22, 2014 
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COLUMBUS METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the 
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CLERK OF THE BUREAU 
 
CERTIFIED 
JUNE 26, 2014 
 

 


	Cover

	Cover Letter

	Table of Contents

	Financial Section

	Statistical Section

	Compliance Section




